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THE FirsT white settler arrived in Bremer County in the year 1845,
a year before Iowa became a state. Five years later, the first settler
arrived on the spot where Waverly is now located. Others soon fol-
lowed, among them a certain W. P. Harmon, who bought the site,
had it surveyed and plotted. He had a dam built across the Cedar
River and built a sawmill on the east side. Soon other establishments
and block houses were erected, and a bridge was built in 1855. Four
years later the town was incorporated, and by 1864 had its first con-
nection with the outside world by rail. From that time on the town
grew, and today is a prosperous city of about 5,000 inhabitants and
the County Seat of Bremer County. It is fast becoming an industrial
city. Furthermore it boasts eight churches, a public library, two ele-
mentary schools, a large high school, and two Lutheran parish schools,
besides Wartburg College with a present enrollment of almost 500
students, a hospital, a Lutheran Children’s Home, and the home office
of the Lutheran Mutual Life Insurance Company.

Among the early settlers there were many Germans of the Lutheran
faith. St. John’s Lutheran Church of Maxfield, the mother church of
Lutheranism in this area, was organized in 1856. It was not until the
late sixties, however, that any work was done among the Lutherans
in and around Waverly. The first Lutheran sermon in Waverly was
delivered by Dr. G. Fritschel, who was a professor at Wartburg Semi-
nary then located at St. Sebald, Towa. The first regular services were
conducted by Pastor L. Schorr of Maxfield, but his successor, Pastor
A. Preller, did not continue the work. When Pastor Paul Bredow came
to Maxfield in January of 1872 he again took up the work in Waverly,
and a few months later, on May 9, 1872, he organized a small congre-
gation with eight men signing the first constitution: Henry Maas, E.
Seybold, M. Koeberle, Carl Boedecker, John and August Friedmann,
John Voight, and John Mahnke. Among others who soon affiliated with
the congregation there were the following: F. Krumwiede, A. F. Kret-
schmar, Mrs. Hagen, Mrs. Schaefer, J. H. Oltrogge, August and Henry
Boedecker, L. Haase, W. Rathe, F. Behrens, Chr. Barten, H. Hart-
mann, Henry and Fred Leege. That was the Mustard Seed which has
grown into a veritable tree by 1947, loved by us all as our church, St.
Paul's Lutheran Congregation.
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Pastor BrREDOW continued in charge of the new congregation until the
arrival of its first regular pastor, the Rev. M. Gerlach, a graduate of
Wartburg Theological Seminary, who came August 1, 1872. Not only
was the congregation small in numbers but poor in this world’s goods,
so that the salary was insufficient for the young pastor to make ends
meet. I{e therefore was forced
to give private instruction to
supplement his meager salary.
Pastor Gerlach is characterized
as a very earnest and zealous
man who devoted himself whole-
heartedly to his pastoral work
and especially the regular in-
struction of his flock. Before the
end of the first year of his pas-
torate he had already prepared a
class of sixteen for confirmation.

- =

Poor as the people were and
weak in numbers it is not sur-
prising that th2y should have no
place of worship, which they
could call their own, nor were
they able to acquire one. The
first services were held in a brick

L R TR L 0 school building on the east side
of the river, then for a while on the upper floor of a wagon and paint
shop on the west side, just two blocks south of the present church. The
need of a church of their own was keenly felt. In order to secure and
save th= first funds to meet this need a women’s society was organized,
one of whose prime functions it was, to work for a church building.
And this society did succeed after a while in saving up $300, a con-
siderable amount of money under the conditions. But now unfortu-
nately a split occurred in the congregation, a number of families seced-
ing and trying to organize a rival church. This left the congregation
weaker than ever, besides engendering much bitterness of feeling, and
the prospect of securing a church property of their own, however
modest, was more remote than ever. There was even legal action by
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the seceding group to get the $300 but the court ruled that inasmuch
as they had left the congregation they had no right to these funds.
The money saved thus far was invested in a parcel of land for a ceme-
tery, St. Paul's Cemetery, southeast of the city.

Pastor Gerlach accepted a call to Franklin Mills, Iowa, in 1876,
and was followed in rapid succession by several pastors, M. Eberhard,
D. M. Ficken, and a Pastor Sommerlad, all of whom remained only a
short time, however. When Wartburg Teacher’s Seminary was moved
to Waverly in 1879 one of the members of the faculty, Prof. F. Eichler,
was called to take charge of the congregation in addition to his other
work. This he did until 1884, when due to a chronic ailment he was
forced to retire from active work, and again the congregation was left
vacant. In 1885 Wartburg College of Mendota, Illinois, was also moved
to Waverly and united with the Teacher’s Seminary. The congrega-

Pastor F. Lutz Prof. F. Eichler

tion again called one of the faculty members, Prof. F. Lutz, to dis-
charge the duties as its pastor. Meanwhile the congregation had grown
stronger and saw its way clear to support a pastor of its own, and
extended a call to Pastor F. Zimmermann of Monona, Iowa, who came
in the early fall of 1888.
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THE ADVENT OF Pastor Zimmermann marks the beginning of a new era
for the congregation. Altogether he served St. Paul’s for seventeen
years, and next to the grace of God, it is due to his leadership and
efficiency as pastor, preacher and teacher, that the congregation owes
its rapid growth and development during the next years. Pastor Zim-
mermann passed to his reward

in March, 1917, during his pas-

torate at Oelwein. His body was

brought to Waverly for burial,

being laid to rest on St. Paul’s

Cemetery.

The new pastor found a
struggling congregation still wor-
shipping in rented quarters. The
little brick church of the defunct
Presbyterian congregation had
some years before been secured
for this purpose. This church
was located in what was known
as Curtis Grove in southeast
Waverly, near the present Post
Office. It was a neat brick struc-
ture with a small white tower,
and was entirely adequate for
the needs of the congregation,
but it was not their own. Meanwhile the church property of the Uni-
versalist Church on the west side was offered for sale. Pastor Zimmer-
mann immediately took up the matter with the congregation, with the
result, that it was unanimously decided to purchase it. The congrega-
tion thus for the first time came into possession of its own church
building. The purchase price was $1,000. This occurred in 1886, four-
teen years after the organization of the congregation. Now the congre-
gation began to grow, indeed, to such an extent that it became neces-
sary to enlarge the building only two years later. This was done by
adding a thirty-foot addition. The days of want and poverty were past.
God had signally blessed his people. At the time of the silver jubilee,
1897, the pastor could report that the congregation now numbered
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approximately 130 families, owned a valuable church property, includ-
ing a spacious church, a large school building to accommodate its
flourishing parish school, and a parsonage, and all property unencum-
bered by any debt.

The former school building, located immediately south of the par-
sonage, was erected in 1890, enlarged in 1901, and again improved in
1911. The present parsonage was built in 1900, an addition added in
1914, and extensively improved in 1922.

During Pastor Zimmermann’s pastorate the congregation was privi-
leged to observe the silver anniversary of its organization. This was
done May 9, 1897. The speakers for the occasion were Pastors Lutz,

THE OLD CHURCH
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Adix, Schedtler and Prof. W. Proehl, D.D. The congregation at the
time numbered 115 voting members, 381 communicants, and 639 souls.
The jubilee report shows that the following ministerial acts were per-
formed during the first 25 years of its existence: 440 baptisms, 255
confirmed, 109 marriages, and 109 burials. Altogether it was a wonder-
ful showing especially in view of the struggles of the early part of
that period.

In 1899 the Orphan’s Home, now known as the Children’s Home,
was moved from Andrew, Iowa, to Waverly, and ever since has been
an integral part of the congregation.

Pastor Zimmermann’s ministry ceased in June, 1903, when he ac-
cepted a call to become president of the Lutheran College, Brenham,
Texas. The congregation accepted his resignation, however, reluc-
tantly, and gave him a vote of grateful appreciation for his zealous
and consecrated ministry.

CONFIRMATION SCENE
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It wiLL BE WELL at this time to add a few words on the educational
work of the congregation. From the beginning great stress was laid
by the congregation and its pastors on the proper instruction and in-
doctrination of the young. The first resident pastor, the Rev. M. Ger-
lach, immediately took up this work and gave it much attention and

prayer. But here again it was Pas-
tor Zimmermann who placed the
school on a solid foundation. Since
it was impossible for him to devote
as much time to the school as its
upbuilding required, and the time
had not yet come for the congrega-
tion to call and support a trained
teacher of its own, he secured as-
sistants, paying them largely out
of his own meager means so that
the school might in no wise suffer.

Mrs. Edna Wessel
Teacher

12

Miss Ethel Pothast
Teacher

The congregation recognized the
blessings of a Christian Day School
as the nursery of the church, and
finally in 1891 resolved to call a
regular teacher to take charge of
this work. Various men were en-
gaged but served only a short time.
The names are the following: II-
ling, Gosse, Nothnagel, and Heck-
er. In June of 1894, Mr. O. Hard-
wig, a graduate of Wartburg




Teacher’s Seminary, took charge
and served the congregation as
teacher and organist until the
spring of 1903, when he took up
his new duties as professor of mu-
sic at Wartburg. When Prof. Hard-
wig entered upon his duties the
school numbered some 40 pupils.
Due to his indefatigable and effi-
cient work the number at one time
reached 89. Mr. Hardwig was suc-

Miss Ruth Goodemann
Teacher

Emma Goppelt. Meanwhile Mr. Li

Miss Mae Schmidt
Teacher

ceeded by C. F. Liefeld, who held
the position for the next ten years,
until the spring of 1913, filling the
position with credit. Indeed, the
work of the school had meanwhile
increased to such an extent that it
became necessary to call an assist-
ant. Miss Lydia Ide was engaged
for this position. She was followed
in 1907 by Miss Mathilda Krau-
shaar, who taught until December,
1910. Her successor was Miss
efeld accepted a call to the faculty

of Eureka Lutheran College, Eureka, S. D. and was succeeded by

Mr. Em. Isaak. The latter continue

d in office until the winter of 1917,

when he accepted a call to Benson, Ill. During his time it became

necessary to call a second assistant

. Miss Goppelt had meanwhile also

resigned (1916), so the congregation called two new teachers in the
persons of Miss Ida Goeken and Miss Laura Grube, the former to take
the place of Miss Goppelt, the latter to take charge of the kinder-
garten and first grades. Additional property was also secured and
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arrangerment was made for a kindergarten and primary room on the
site of our present Parish House. When Mr. Isaak left in the early
spring of 1917 Miss Goeken was made principal and Miss Helen
Becker was engaged to take her place and also to serve as organist
and choir director. Miss Goeken was followed in 1920 by Miss Augusta
Topping, who later became principal. In 1921 both Misses Grube and
Becker resigned their positions. The school had meanwhile also de-
creased in enrollment and the congregation resolved to engage only
two teachers. Miss Selma Klein took charge of the lower grades in
1921.

Prof. E. G. Heist assumed the duties as organist and choir director
in 1921, a position which he still holds today.

Coming back to the school, both Miss Topping and Miss Klein re-
signed in the spring of 1925. Miss Alma Schoebel was engaged as
principal for the next four years, and Mrs. Doralina Zelle taught the
lower grades for the following three years. She was succeeded in 1925
by Miss Elsie Mueller who served in the school for the next nineteen
years, and since the summer of 1945 has been engaged by the congre-
gation as full time Parish Worker, in which capacity she continues to
serve as principal of the school.

In 1927 Miss Charlotte Becker was called as principal and succes-
sor to Miss Schoebel. She taught the upper grades for the next ten
years and from 1937 to 1940, when a third teacher was again added,
she was in charge of the Junior High Room. Miss Marvel Childers
was engaged as the third teacher. She taught grades 4 to 6 from 1937
to 1939. She was succeeded by Miss Marie Zink in 1939. Whan Miss
Becker left in the spring of 1940 Miss Zink took charge of the Junior
High Room and Mrs. Alma Nelson was engaged to take her place. At
this time Miss Mueller became principal. In 1941 two new teachers
were engaged, Miss Frances Tweito for 7th and 8th, and Miss Esther
Karsten for the Intermediate Room. Miss Tweito, however, resigned
that same fall and was replaced for the balance of the year by Miss
Delores Prior.

In the fall of 1942 Mrs. Edna Wessel was called to teach the Pri-
mary Room, a position which she still holds today. In addition she
serves as director of the Junior Choir which was organized some years
previously by Miss Becker, and which annually on the second Sunday
in Advent presents a beautiful candlelight service.

Miss Ethel Pothast was engaged in 1943 to take charge of the Inter-
mediate Room, a position which she also continues to fill to the present
time.

When Miss Mueller became Parish Worker at St. Paul’s, Miss Ruth
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Goodemann was called to become Junior High teacher. She served in
this capacity for one year. In the fall of 1946 there was such a marked
increase in enrollment, that the Church Council felt it advisable to
add a fourth teacher. This necessitated some shifting of classes so as
to have two grades in each room. Mrs. Wessel now has the first and
second grade room, Miss Pothast is in charge of third and fourth, Miss
Goodemann took over the fifth and sixth grade room, and Miss Helene
Matthias was engaged temporarily to teach the Junior High Room,
but after the first six weeks she asked to be replaced. A replacement
was found in the person of Mrs. Walter Tillmanns, who, however, also
found it necessary to resign at the end of the first semester. Miss Mae
Schmidt, a student at Wartburg College and a former teacher, has
been engaged to finish the year.

The Parish School was housed in the building now owned by the
Drape Construction Company from 1891 to 1941, but in February of
that year the classes were moved into the beautiful and spacious
school rooms of the newly constructed Parish House. With renewed
interest in the Parish School our enrollment has risen to 103 at the
present time.

In conclusion be it said, that from the beginning St. Paul’s Church
fully recognized the importance of careful instruction of the young
and the value of a full-fledged Christian Day School as the best means
to accomplish this purpose—a fact which subsequent events amply
confirmed and justified. May St. Paul's Lutheran School continue to
be a source of blessing to the youth of the congregation.

At the same time the congregation also conducted a regular Sun-
day School with an efficient corps of teachers. This was organized
during the ministry of Pastor Zimmermann. It is at the present time
under the efficient leadership of Prof. Alf W. Swenson with an enroll-
ment of 518 and a regular staff of 41 workers. In addition the congre-
gation has for a number of years been conducting classes in the local
public schools through Junior High on released time. This latter pro-
gram is now entirely in the hands of our Parish Worker. Since 1944
the congregation has also conducted a two weeks Daily Vacation
Bible School taught by our regular Parish School teachers and several
assistants.
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Pastor Joun WEYRAUCH was called as the successor of Pastor Zimmer-
mann. He came to Waverly from Rock Falls, 111, in the early fall of
1903. The outstanding feature of his pastorate was the erection of our
present church building, which at that time was one of the finest and
largest churches in this section of the state. The matter of a new
church building had been agi-
tated and discussed for some
time. The congregation had
grown to such a degree that the
old church was hopelessly too
small. The question took its first
definite shape in July, 1905, in a
re-olution to find and purchase
a building site. After a year’s
delay for one reason or another,
the so-called Tanner property
was purchased, the site of the
present church, which adjoined
the old church property on the
south side. A building commit-
tee was appointed consisting of
Prof. A. Engelbrecht, chairman,
Messrs. F. P. Hagemann, (Rev.)
C. Ide, H. Kasemeier, G. A.
Grossmann, John Schoof, Au-
gust Friedemann and H. Claus-
ing. The cornerstone of the new church was laid July 15, 1907. In it
was placed a Bible, a copy of the Kirchenblatt and the Waverly Phoe-
nix, a history of the congregation, as well as a copy of its constitution,
a copy of the subscriptions to the building fund, and several coins
donated for this purpose. Buechner and Orth of St. Paul, Minn., were
engaged as architects and Anton Zwack of Dubuque, Iowa, was given
the contract to build the church. The new church was built according
to a modified cruciform Gothic style and has a seating capacity of 650
to 700. The building cost $32,548.54 including the building site, but
exclusive of the organ and baptismal font. The former had been pur-
chased during the time of Pastor Zimmermann and was moved over

17

Pastor John Weyrauch




from the old church. The baptismal font was given by the Luther
League during the pastorate of Dr. Rausch.

The new church was dedicated on March 1, 1908, with the follow-
ing program: a farewell service in the old church; a procession to the
new church with the pastors carrying the sacred vessels, followed by
the Church Council, school board, building committee, and congrega-
tion, and then a dedicatory service in the new church. The speakers
were Pastors Zimmermann and Lutz, both former pastors, Pres. F.
Richter, D.D., and Pastor Otto Wilke, the latter giving an English
address, probably the first ever held in St. Paul's Church.

Pastor Weyrauch was a very earnest and zealous man, a splendid
preacher and pastor, who is still remembered for his truly evangelical
preaching. During the latter part of his ministry it was apparent that
his health was failing. In spite of this, however, he headed the com-
mittee which solicited the funds in cash and pledges to make the
building of the new church possible. Though the new church meant
so much to him he was privileged to preach in it but four times. His
weakened physical condition forced him to retire from active work
and he resigned in May, 1908. The congregation accepted his resigna-
tion with many regrets, but resolved that he should continue as pastor
until the coming of his successor. At the same time it voted him a
vacation until the end of his ministry. After a stay in Texas did not
improve his health he returned to Waverly where he passed to his
reward in April, 1910. His body was taken to his former home in
Menomonie, Wis., where it was
laid to rest awaiting the great day
of resurrection.

Meanwhile the congregation
had called a successor in the per-
son of Pastor Emil H. Rausch of
Marine City, Mich., who assumed
his duties on Sept. 9, 1908.

OLD ORGAN
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THE PARSONAGE

INTERIOR OF PARISH HOUSE
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THE NEW PASTOR found a strong and church-going congregation of 170
voting members, approximately 500 communicants and 789 souls, with
a flourishing Parish School and Sunday School, an active Women’s
Society and Young People’s Organization, and a fine church property.
But there were two outstanding problems from the beginning which
demanded attention: a heavy in-
debtedness of over $13,000 with
a financial system which barely
met the current expenses, and the
language problem.

The first of these, the matter
of the debt, was solved with rela-
tive ease. By January, 1910, the
debt including interest amounted
to $15,000. The campaign to liqui-
date this indebtedness and do so
at once was started by the sainted
Mr. Frederick Schack, who of-
fered $1,000 provided the entire
indebtedness would be wiped
away. The congregation took the
matter up without delay and re-
solved with the help of God to
have the debt cleared away by
the first Sunday in April. An
every member canvass was imme-
diately staged by the Church Council and its indefatigable treasurer,
Mr. Wm. Weiditschka, no funds, however, being solicited outside the
congregation, and when the appointed time came the pastor could
announce after worship, that the moneys were secured. Like one man
the whole congregation arose and sang the hymn, “Now Thank We
All Our God!”

The matter of the financial system, however, was not so easily dis-
posed of. It had been customary in the congregation for every head
of a family to contribute a stated amount, theoretically according to
ability, for the entire family. But even the strictest economy could not
always keep the necessary disbursements within the limits of the in-
come. And as a result the congregation was always more or less forced
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to struggle with overdrafts at the bank, to borrow money to pay these,
and to pay interest. After many spasmodic attempts to remedy the
situation had failed the congregation in the annual meeting of 1921
adopted the every member canvass and weekly envelope system. The
debt which had meanwhile accumulated was liquidated through the
special jubilee fund which was raised for the golden jubilee, and
which netted over $10,000 in cash and pledges in addition to the
$1,000 raised by the Women’s Society.

The second of the problems which was beginning to make itself
felt was the language problem. The congregation had been organized
as a strictly German language congregation, which was well and good
and the only proper thing to do at the time. It continued to use the
German language only for worship and for the religious instruction
of the young, though the secular branches in the Parish School were
taught in English. But the younger generation began to grow away
from the German language more and more and threatened to grow
away from the church also unless the English language was introduced.
In the spring of 1909 regular English work was introduced, although
German continued to be the main language used for some time to
come. It met with opposition at first, as was to be expected, but grad-
ually the English became the main language. For some years now all
the religious instruction has been conducted in the English language,
and though there is still a regular German service every Sunday in
addition to the two English services, the average attendance at the
German service for 1946 was only 124 compared with 877 per Sunday
at the two English services. Thus the language problem which at one
time was a real problem has found a natural and peaceful solution.
It is only a question now of how long the congregation will deem it
necessary to continue German services at all.

During Pastor Rausch’s pastorate several other things need to be
mentioned, such as the gift of a pure Carrara marble baptismal font
by the Luther League in 1914. In 1910 and again in 1920 the congre-
gation was host to the convention of the Iowa Synod. Over 60 young
men from the congregation were called to the colors in World War
No. 1 and the pastor served on various national Lutheran war boards,
and in later years became a commissioner of the National Lutheran
Council.

The golden jubilee of the congregation was observed from May
21 to 24, 1922. A $10,000 fund had been raised for the occasion. Out
of this fund the church was redecorated, the congregational indebted-
ness liquidated, and other improvements were made. The Women’s
Society had gathered $1,000 for the occasion and presented new altar
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and pulpit hangings, a new crucifix of solid brass with a silver corpus,
a new rug for the sacristy and a cabinet for the altar vestments. The
Luther League together with the Orphan’s Home Society presented
two new number boards to the church.

The parochial report of Jan. 1, 1922, shows the following statistics:
voting membership 243; communicant membership 886; souls or bap-
tized membership 1,283.

The summary of the official acts in the congregation during the
first fifty years of its existence showed the following: baptisms 1180;
confirmed 1015; communed 38,822; marriages 425; burials 413.

For some years Pastor Rausch also served as president of the Iowa
District and as editor of the Lutheran Herold, official English Church
Paper of the former Iowa Synod. Two institutions of higher learning
honored him with honorary doctor’s degrees. He distinguished him-
self as a linguist, translator, and administrator. He served the congre-
gation faithfully for almost 25 years, shepherding the congregation
for almost a third of its entire history. In 1932 he accepted the call
to become President of Wartburg Seminary in Dubuque, Iowa, a posi-
tion which he ably filled until his untimely death in the summer of
1937. After a service in the Seminary Chapel his body was brought
to Waverly for burial, where it was laid to rest on Harlington Ceme-
tery awaiting the great day when it too shall be called forth from the
grave to the resurrection of life.

INTERIOR OF CHURCH
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Pastor R. C. SCHLUETER, a young and energetic pastor from Oconom-
owoc, Wis., who had distinguished himself in young people’s work,
was called to succeed Dr. Rausch. He arrived in May of 1932 on the
day-that his predecessor was installed as president of Wartburg Semi-
nary, and was installed on June 5 by Pastor H. Siefkes.

One of the first things to be
undertaken during his pastorate
was the revision and adoption of
new Articles of Incorporation and
By-Laws on Jan. 22, 1933. The
congregation at the time of his ar-
rival had grown to number 974
communicants and 1,329 souls.

In 1934 the congregation enter-
tained the Biennial Convention of
the American Lutheran Church.
At this convention it was decided
to move Wartburg College back to
Waverly, a move which was com-
pleted in the fall of 1935,

At the annual meeting in 1934
the congregation adopted and in-
troduced the new American Lu-
theran Hymnal. The cemetery was
also put on a solid footing by a Pastor R. C. Schlueter
resolution according to which no
lots could be sold in the future except with perpetual care. That same
year the Women’s Society redecorated the parsonage.

Late in 1935 it was reported that the Women’s Society had started
a Parish House building fund. The congregation had often talked and
dreamed about a Parish House but now for the first time something
concrete was beginning to happen. At the annual meeting in 1936 the
congregzation ordered the Church Council to study plans and make
preliminary sketches for a new Parish House. A year later, in January,
1937, the Church Council was empowered to create a Building Fi-
nance Committee to proceed with the raising of necessary funds. The
committee appointed consisted of Messrs. E. G. Engelbrecht, Fred
Fedeler, (Dr.) C. H. Graening, W. Voecks, Otto Walthers, Fred Wolf,
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and Arthur Zelle. On June 6, 1937, their plans were approved by the
congregation at a special meeting, and Director August Engelbrecht
was engaged to solicit the membership for pledges. Several more years
elapsed, however, before the building itself became a reality. In April,
1940, Mr. Carl Drape was engaged to build the Parish House, it hav-
ing been previously resolved by the congregation that the Building
Committee be empowered to borrow funds for this purpose not to
exceed $20,000 to cover the cost which was not secured by pledges.
The contract was let on the basis of cost, plus an amount not exceed-
ing 11%%. On Sunday, Aug. 25, 1940, the cornerstone was laid with
_appropriate services. The building was completed and equipped that
winter at a cost of around $50,000 and could be dedicated with special
services on Feb. 23, 24 and 25, 1941.

Meanwhile other improvements were made such as the installation
of hearing aids in 1937, and in 1940 the congregation voted to enter
the Pension Plan for the pastor.

The question regarding an assistant pastor had been discussed
for some time. In 1939 a special committee was appointed to study
the matter. In January, 1941, the congregation voted to call an or-
dained assistant pastor, and on Sept. 14 of the same year a call was
extended to Pastor Otto Fangmeyer of Beeville, Texas, who accepted
the call and was installed for a two year term on Nov. 9, 1941, as
assistant pastor of St. Paul’s congregation. For the next 15 months the
congregation had two pastors, until the end of January in 1943 when
Pastor Schlueter was given an honorable dismissal to accept the call
tendered him by St. Paul's Lutheran Church of Monona, Iowa. At a
farewell service the congregation handed Pastor Schlueter and his
wife a generous purse, wishing him God’s blessing in his new field
of labor.

The congregation upon recommendation of the Church Council
empowered Pastor Fangmeyer to take full charge until a successor to
Pastor Schlueter would be found.

[ £
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O~ FeBruary 22, 1943, the Church Council passed the following rec-
ommendation: “We recommend Pastor Fangmeyer as the first pastor
of St. Paul's Church, at an annual salary of $2,400 plus free parson-
age.” At a special call meeting held on March 7, 1943, Pastor Fang-
meyer was called, and the matter of an assistant pastor was referred
to the Church Council for recommendation in the future. The congre-
gation at this time numbered 1,412 communicants and 1,930 souls.

At the beginning of 1943 the congregation was still burdened with
an indebtedness of over $18,000 on the Parish House, but through sale
of the old school property and a large free will offering on Thanks-
giving Day the debt was reduced to $8,200 by the end of the year.
This indebtedness was reduced still further through free will offerings
so that by the beginning of 1945 it had been reduced to $3,500, of
which amount at least $1,500 was covered by Government Bonds. The
remaining indebtedness is to be liquidated out of the special jubilee
fund of $18,000 which was gathered in 1946.

In the summer of 1945 Miss Elsie Mueller was called by the con-
gregation to serve in the capacity of Parish Worker. This has been of
great assistance to the pastor, and
has relieved him of many of the
details of his office.

Much emphasis has been placed
on church attendance. In the fall
of 1945 a Church Loyalty Month
was held, and since that time the
attendance has been steadily climb-
ing, so that it often happens that
our two English servicies are taxed
for space. During the year 1946 the
congregation had an average at-
tendance of 1,001 per Sunday.

By resolution of the congrega-
tion the week of May 4 to 11 was
set aside for the proper observance
of the diamond jubilee. In May of
1946 the congregation was divided
into 12 areas with one councilman

assigned to each area. He was to e BT
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select his own workers and strive to secure pledges in the neighbor-
hood of $1,500 from each area or a total of $18,000. A workers” dinner
was served and when all the reports had come in a total of $18,681.50
had been pledged. This together with $1,666.53 in the Organ Fund
gave the congregation over $20,000 for the improvements to be made
for the diamond jubilee. The improvements consist of rebuilding the
organ, redecorating the church, new light fixtures, repairing the win-
dows, wiping out the Parish House indebtedness, new rest rooms for
the church, redecorating the chancel, new doors, refinishing of floors,
and giving a copy of this anniversary booklet to every member who
made a subscription to the jubilee fund. In addition $3,000 was set
aside to be given to Lutheran World Action.

The societies are also all giving some gift for the occasion. The
Tabitha Circle installed a public address system. The Women’s Society
is recarpeting the chancel, sacristy, aisles, and recovering the steps
leading to the balcony and basement. The Brotherhood is taking care
of the lighting in the chancel, the Daughters of the Reformation are
placing a missal stand on the altar and a guest book in the foyer. The
Luther Leagues are placing bulletin boards in the church and Parish
House, while the Parish School is installing a Victor Sound Projector
in the Parish House. These are all valuable additions to our physical

property which is now worth in the
neighborhood of $175,000.

The most immediate problem
facing the congregation as it rounds
out the first 75 years of its exist-
ence is the matter of room. The
congregation has again outgrown
its building, so that either ‘the
church must be enlarged or addi-
tional services be provided. We
look into the future with confi-
dence.

We conclude this brief history
of the congregation with the ear-
nest prayer that the congregation
may grow in grace as it has grown
in numbers and influence, and that
God may make it a power for good
for many.

PARISH WORKER Soli Deo Gloria!
Miss Elsie Mueller
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&a listics

The last parochial report of Jan. 1, 1947, shows the following
statistics:

Communicant MemMDETS ...........ccoovevviviiiiiiiiiceceee e 1,645
Baptized members ...........cocoociiiiieiiiie s 2,232
Pupils in the parochial school ..., 103
Pupils in the Children’s Home school ............cccooveiiinninnnnnn, 36
Sunday School enrollment ............ccocoeiiiiniiiniicice e, 518
Teachers and Officers in Sunday School ..........cccccoeeeiiinninnnnen. 41
Women's SOCIELY .......ccceiiiririiieieireeee e 149
Tabitha Circle ... 108
Daughters of Reformation ..........c.cocoeeriiininiseeeeeeeeeeene 25
Parent-Teacher AssocCiation .............cccoeveeivieirieeniereisieeeeeeeeens 68
Senior Luther League ........ccoooviiiiienniviieeeeeee e 51
Junior Luther League ........ccccovmiiiiiiininniiiceeeeeee €0
Junior Mission Band .........ccccccoeviniiineiicecee e 103
Brotherhood .........cccooiiiiincccccee e 90

PASTORS WHO HAVE SERVED THE CONGREGATION
M. Gerlach ..o 1872-1876

Martin Eberhard ..o 1876-1877
Prof. F. Eichler ........ccocooooiivmiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeeevee e 1879-1884
Prof. F. LULZ coooiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee et 1885-1886
Fredrick Zimmermanmn .........cccoccoeieieiiieeeeeieceeeeeee e 1886-1903
John Weyrauch ........ccoviiieiciieeee e 1903-1908
Emil H. Rausch ....ocooovoiiiiiiiiececceeeeeeeeeeeee e 1908-1932
Roland C. Schlueter ..........cccoooviveiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeea 1932-1943
Otto Fangmeyer ........cocccooieiiinieiieiiiiierieeeeteese e 1941 ————
SUMMARY OF OFFICIAL ACTS
May 9, 1872 - Jan. 1, 1947
BaptiSImS ...cccveiiiieiee e e 2,169
COoNBIMEd ..ottt sttt 2,938
MATTIAZES  veveeirieierirtieetirietetrt ettt ettt st bes bbb b st ebe st eaeseeesan 903
FUNETALS oottt s err bbb s 912
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Pastor ..o Rev. Otto Fangmeyer

Parish Worker .........cccoooiiviiiiiiieiecececeee Miss Elsie Mueller

Church Council: E. G. Engelbrecht, Chairman; A. A. Aardal, Secre-
tary; E. T. Koopmann, Treasurer; Trustees—E. H. Meyer, Wm.
Schoof, Fred Hesse; Deacons—E. Wedeking, Arthur Zelle, J. Ken-
dall Lynes, Vice-Chairman; School Board—August Prottengeier,
H. F. Grube, Gordon Shipman.

Teachers in the Parish School: Mrs. Edna Wessel, Miss Ethel Pothast,
Miss Ruth Goodemann, Miss Mae Schmidt.

Organist and Choir Director .........cc.cccooeveenierinenieennn. Prof. E. G. Heist

Head Usher ......cccovveieioe i Mr. Robert Mensing
Financial Secretary .........cccocooeeevinineciieiineeieneeeee, Mr. H. F. Grube
Custodian ........cveeveininrieece e Mr. Wm. H. Muehling

SUNDAY SCHOOL STAFF

Officers: Pastor, Rev. Otto Fangmeyer; Parish Worker, Elsie Mueller;
Superintendent, Alf W. Swenson; Secretary, Mrs. Elsie Biermann;
Literature Secretary, Eldora Flugga; Treasurer, E. H. Kohlmann;
Junior Choir Director, Mrs. Edna Wessel, Birthday Secretary,
Irma Schwake.

Beginners’ Departiment: Secretary, Margaret Kehe; Assistant Secre-
taries, Lorraine Heyer and Darlene Muehling; Cradle Roll Secre-
tary, Mrs. Gertrude Muench.

TEACHERS AND SUBSTITUTES

Adult Class—W. Tillmanns; substitute, G. J. Neumann and ]. Hiltner.
Junior-Senior Girls—Helene Haefner; substitute, Edna Wessel. Junior-
Senior Boys—lLeo Wuest. Freshman-Sophomore Girls—Mrs. E. Lie-
mohn; substitute, Mrs. W. Tillmanns. Freshman-Sophomore Boys—W.
G. Voecks; substitute, E. Hertel. 8th Grade Girls—Mrs. V. Hagemann;
substitute, Mrs. W. G. Voecks. 8th Grade Boys—Herbert Heist; substi-
tute, Lester Polenz. 7th Grade Girls—Edna Fedeler; substitute, Perna
Lohn. 7th Grade Boys—Delford Kalal; substitute, Donald Polenz. 6th
Grade Girls—E. Koopmann; substitute, Esther Ide. 6th Grade Boys—
C. Saathoff; substitute, K. Weltner. 6th Grade Boys—R. Langholz; sub-
stitute, Paul Meyers. 5th Grade—Ruth Goodemann and A. Meyer; sub-
stitute, Velda Roever. 4th Grade—Adelheid Knapp, Ethel Pothast,
Henrietta Zink. 3rd Grade—C. Isermann, Esther Karsten, Mrs. K.
Weltner; substitute, Elaine Pichelmeyer. 2nd Grade—Mrs. M. Wieder-
aenders and Mrs. Fred Wolf; substitutes, Helen Remmers and Janice
Frese. 1st Grade A—Ardith Kohlmann; substitute, Rosella Thoren. 1st
Grade B—Mrs. Leo Orth; substitute, Mae Schmidt. Kindergarten A—
Mrs. H. Buhmann; substitute, Mrs. K. Eichler. Kindergarten B—Laura
Meyer; substitute, Dorothy Krumwiede. Pre-School A—Gertrude Zahn;
substitute, Olinda Meyer. Pre-School B—Mrs. E. H. Kohlmann; substi-
tutes, Geraldine Roloff and Lois Muehling.
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Aardal, Prof. A. A.

Aardal, Anne

Aardal, Jane

Aardal, Emmajean

Ackmann, Mr. and Mrs. Erwin
Ackmann, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Albers, Mrs. Hazel

Albers, Elaine

Albrecht, Mr. and Mrs. Adolph
Albrecht, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Albrecht, Mr. and Mrs. Harley
Albright, Mrs. August
Albright, Edward

Albright, Linda

Albright, Mr. and Mrs. Rudolph
Allen, Mr. and Mrs. Justin
Anderson, James

Anderson, Russel

Arenholz, Mr. and Mrs. Harm
Arenholz, Darlys

Arenholz, Mr. and Mrs. Joe
Arenholz, Mr. and Mrs. Rolf
Arns, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Arns, Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth
Arns, Mr. and Mrs. Loren
Arns, Mr. and Mrs. Victor
Bade, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Bade, Donna

Bade, Mrs. Henry

Baetke, Rev. and Mrs. Aug.
Baetke, Helen Marie

Bahe, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Bahe, Mr. and Mrs. Ray
Bahlmann, Mr. and Mrs. I'red
Bahlmann, Carl

Bahlmann, Alvin

Bakken, Maureen

Baker, Mrs. Ernst

Baker, Mrs. Hilda

Baker, Arlo

Baker, Mr. and Mrs. Leo
Banser, Mrs. Anna

Bany, Mr. and Mrs. T. H.
Bartels, Mrs. Anna

Bartels, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Bartels, Norma

Bartels, Mr. and Mrs. Ralph
Bast, Mr. and Mrs. Otto

Bast, Frieda

Bast, Erna

Bast, Anna

Bauer, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Bauer, Mr. and Mrs. Floyd
Bauer, Mrs. Ida

Bauer, Leroy

Bauer, Mr. and Mrs. William
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Bauer, Ewald

Bauer, Irene

Bausch, Mrs. Katherine

Beam, Mrs. Margaret
Bearmann, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Bearmann, Verjean

Becker, Rev. and Mrs. Conrad
Becker, Mrs. John

Beckmann, Mrs. Gladys
Beebe, Mrs. Donald

Beebe, Mr. and Mrs. Norman
Benedix, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Benning, Mr. and Mrs. Eldon
Bente, Huron

Bente, Jean

Berger, Mrs. Grace
Bergfelder, Rev. and Mrs. Otto
Bergfelder, Paul

Bergfelder, Ruth

Bierie, Paul

Biermann, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Bills, Mr. Charles

Bills, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Blasberg, Mr. and Mrs. Alvin
Blasberg, Mr. and Mrs. Edgar
Bodeker, Mr. and Mrs. E. A.
Bodeker, Mr. and Mrs. William
Boeckmann, Mrs. Dorothy
Boedecker, Mr. Henry

Boedecker, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann

Boedecker, Eugene

Boevers, Mr. and Mrs. Arnold
Boevers, Mr. Henry

Bovers, Mrs. Caroline
Boevers, Mr. and Mrs. Paul
Bogan, Mr. and Mrs. Howard
Bogan, Doyle

Bolin, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Bondo, Mrs. H. W.

Bondo, Edna

Bosholm, Rev. and Mrs. Claus
Bosholm, Anna

Bowles, Mrs. Clay

Bowles, Mrs. Earl
Brandenburg, Mrs. E. J.

Brandenburg, Mr. and Mrs. Harold

Brandenburg, Lisette
BErandenburg, Mrs. Richard
Brandenburg, Mr. Rudolph
Brandenburg, Carl
Brandenburg, John
Brandenburg, Martin
Brandes, Mr. Martin

Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Brandt, Eileen

Brandt, Earl
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Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Brandt, Donald

Brandt, Duane

Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Brandt, Mr. Louis

Brandt, Mrs. Martha

Brandt, Hilda

Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Paul
Brandt, Robert

Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. R. E.
Brandt, Milton

Brandt, Ernest

Brandt, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Braun, Clarice

Brierly, Mrs. Ruth

Briner, Mrs. C. H.

Droderson, Mr. and Mrs. IFloyd
Bredow, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Brueckner, Mrs. Dorothy
Bruns, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Brye, Dr. and Mrs. M. O.
Buehrer, Mr. and Mrs. T. M.
Buehrer, Maurice

Buenger, Darlyce

Buenger, Mr. and Mrs. Ed
Buenger, Edward

Buenger, Milton

Buenger, Burton

Buenzow, Mr. and Mrs. Paul
Buhmann, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Buhmann, Darwin

Buhr, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Buhr, Mr. and Mrs. Richard
Buhrow, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Buhrow, Helen

Buhrow, Ruth

Burman, Mr. and Mrs. Clyde
Burman, Robert

Burman, Wallace

Burman, Marjorie

Burman, Mr. and Mrs. George
Busch, Mr. and Mrs. Lester
Busching, Mr. and Mrs. Ben
Busching, Donald

Busching, Stanley

Busching, Mr. and Mrs. Martin
Busse, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Busse, Mr. and Mrs. Wilbert
Busse, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Busse, Mrs. William

Butzlaff, Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
Cain, Mr. Earl

Carstensen, Dr. and Mrs. C. I
Carstensen, Mr. and Mrs. Ernct
Carstensen, Margaret
Carstensen, Dr. Vincent
Carstensen, Mrs. Wm.

Carver, Mrs. Laurence
Chester, Mrs. Edith
Christman, Mr. and Mrs. Ceorge
Clatterbaugh, Mrs. Shirley
Cleveland, Mr. and Mrs. Harry
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Clewell, Mr. and Mrs. Eldon
Cole, Mrs. Betty Jean

Cmelik, Mr. and Mrs. Robert
Coffin, Mrs. Marie

Cornils, Prof. and Mrs. J.
Cornils, Margaret

Cornils, Paul

Corson, James

Cotterman, Prof. and Mrs. A. D.
Cottermann, Theodore
Culbertson, Mr. and Mrs. Floyd
Culbertson, Bonnie

Culbertson, John

Courbat, Mr. and Mrs. Arlo
Cross, Dorothy

Cross, Mr. and Mrs. Laverne
Dalzell, Mrs. Lorraine

Davis, Mr. and Mrs. Charles
Deguisne, Mrs. Im.

Deguisne, Magdalene

Deike, Mr. and Mrs. August
Deke, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Dcempsey, Mrs. Verna

De Neui, Mr. and Mrs. John

De Neui, John

De Neui, William

De Neui, Mary Lou

Denner, Mr. and Mrs. Alvin
Denner, Chris

Dettmer, Mrs. Doretta
Dettmer, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Dettmer, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Dettmer, Duane

Dettmer, Mr. and Mrs. I'ritz
Dewey, Mrs. Charles

Dietz, Mrs. Gertrude

Dietz, Dorothy

Dietz, Dean

Dilges, Rev. and Mrs. J. [
Drape, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Drape, Verlon

Donlon, Mrs. Ed.

Dornbusch, Mr. and Mrs. John
Dornbusch, Jeanette
Dornbusch, Leretta Mae
Dornbusch, Richard

Downing, Mr. and Mrs. Raymond
Downing, Frederick

Drenner, Mr. and Mrs. Ilerbert
Droste, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur F.
Droste, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur W.
Droste, Mr. and Mrs. Edward
Droste, Mr. Fred

Droste, Mr. and Mrs. John
Droste, Mr. and Mrs. Lavern
Droste, Mrs. Frieda

Droste, Barbara

Droste, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Droste, Mr. and Mrs. William
Droste, Edgar

Ducker, Mr. Carl

Ducker, Mr. and Mrs. Erwin
Ducker, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
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Ducker, Clarence

Duerschner, Mrs. Fred
Dukowitz, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Ebert, Mrs. Anna

Ebert, Cora

Eckstein, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Eckstein, Rosamond

Eckstein, Carol

Eckstein, Wallace

Ehlert, Mr. and Mrs. Harley
Ehrke, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Eichler, Mr. and Mrs. Karl
Eick, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Ellermann, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Ellermann, Irving
Engelbrecht, Dir. Aug.
Engelbrecht, Ella

Engelbrecht, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin H.

Engelbrecht, Robert
Engelbrecht, William
Engelbrecht, Mary Ann
Engert, Mr. and Mrs. Reuben
Erbes, Mr. and Mrs. George
Everding, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Everding, Lucille
Fangmeyer, Rev. and Mrs. Otto
Fankhauser, Mrs. Lorraine
Fedeler, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Fedeler, Hilda

Fedeler, Florence

Fedeler, Edna

Fedeler, Norman

Fehring, Anne

Finger, Mr. and Mrs. Arlin
Fikenscher, Agnes

Fischer, Mrs. Cornelius
Fischer, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Fischer, Francis

Fischer, Mrs. Hilda

Fiske, Mrs. Gustav

Flege, Mr. and Mrs. August
Flege, Velda

Flege, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Flege, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst
Flege, Mr. and Mrs. Werner
Flege, Mrs. Eugene

Flugga, Mr. John

Flugga, Eldora

Foelske, Mr. and Mrs. Julius
Foelske, Arthur

Foster, Elinor

Foster, Shirley

Franken, Mr. and Mrs. Donald
Frederick, Mrs. Emma
Frederick, Raymond
Frederick, William
Frederick, Carl

Frese, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Frese, Earl

Frese, Janice

Fritschel, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Fritschel, Mrs. Maria
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Fritschel, Martin

Fritschel Anna

Fritz, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Fruehling, Mr. and Mrs. Wilmut

Fuerstenberg, Mr. and Mrs. Wendell

Gade, Mr. and Mrs. Fred

Gade, Wayland

Gade, Marlys

Gambaiani, Mr. and Mrs. Frank
Gamm, Vera

Garling, Mrs. Lenora
Gerberding, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Gerberding, Arlene

Geren, Mrs. Roy

Geuther, Mr. and Mrs. Alvin
Geuther, Robert

Geuther, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Geuther, Velda

Geuther, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Geuther, Mr. and Mrs. Neal
Geuther, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Gier, Mrs. Doris

Gilbertson, Mr. and Mrs. Martin
Gilley, Mr. and Mrs. Jesse
Giesler, Mrs. Lizzie

Goodman, Mrs. James

Gordon, Mrs. Paul

Gordon, Ralph

Gordon, Beverly

Gordon, Robert

Gors, Mr. and Mrs. Robert
Graening, Dr. and Mrs. C. H.
Graening, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Graening. Mr. and Mrs. Lorenz
Graeser, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Graeser, Mr. and Mrs. Bernard
Graser, Mr. and Mrs. Clifford
Graeser, Mrs. I'red

Graeser, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Graeser, Mr. and Mrs. Virgil
Grawe, Mrs. Carl

Grawe, Frederick

Grawe, Joseph

Grossmann, Mr. and Mrs. A. C.
Grube, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Grube, Orin

Gruben, Mrs. Hilda

Grunke, Rev. and Mrs. Marvin
Guergens, Mrs. Wm.

Guetzlaff, Emma

Haar, Mr. and Mrs. Ed.

Haar, Mr. and Mrs. Louie
Haar, Arnold

Haberling, Joan

Hack, Mrs. Sam

Hackbarth, Mr. and Mrs. G. C.
Hackenewerd, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Hackenewerd, Lavern
Hackenewerd, Lawrence
Haefner, Dr. and Mrs. A. E.
Haefner, Mrs. J.

Haefner, Marie
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Haefner, Helene

Haefner, Mr. and Mrs. Oscar
Haefner, Joan

Hagemann, Carl

Hagemann, Dorlena
Hagemann, Mr. and Mrs. I. P.
Hagemann, Mr. and Mrs. Harry
Hagemann, Mr. and Mrs. V. F.
Harding, Mr. and Mrs. Max
Hardwig, Dr. and Mrs. O. C.
Hardwig, Mrs. Helene
Hartman, Mr. and Mrs. Donald
Harmening, Marlys
Harmening, Mildred

Harris, Mrs. A. E.

Hartman, Mrs. A. H.
Hartman, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst
Hartman, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Hartman, Lloyd

Hartman, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Hartman, Virgil

Haven, Mr. and Mrs. Ivan
Haven, Joan

Hay, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Hay, Mr. Fred

Hay, Lucy

Heeren, Mrs. Heero

Heeren, Mr. and Mrs. John
Hein, Mr. and Mrs. Ernest
Hein, Marldine

Heiser, Mrs. Alta

Heiser, Mr. and Mrs. Forrest
Heiser, Mrs. Leona

Heiser, Mrs. Robert

Heist, Prof. E. G.

Heist, Erwin

Heist, Herbert

Hennings, Mrs. Charles
Hennings, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Hennings, Richard

Hennings, Billie

Hertel, Dr. and Mrs. Elmer
Hesse, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Heyer, Mr. and Mrs. Werner
Heyer, Laverne

Heyer, Evelyn

Heyer, Lorraine

Heyer, Donald

Heyer, Mr. and Mrs. Gus
Hillmann, Mrs. Ida

Hiltner, Prof. and Mrs. John
Hiltner, John Jr.

Hinders, Mr. and Mrs. Claus
Hinders, Kneal

Hinders, Louise

Hinders, Florence

Hinders, Grace

Hinders, Mr. and Mrs. Reiner
Hirsch, Mr. and Mrs. Christian
Hoermann, Mr. Fred
Hoermann, Mr. Elmer

Hoff, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
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Holland, Forrest

Holmes, Mrs. John

Homann, Mr. Carl

Homann, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Homann, Edgar

Homann, Margaret

Homann, Mrs. Ila

Homann, Mervon

Homann, Duane

Homann, Mrs. Lena

Homann, Mr. and Mrs. Ronald
Homann, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. F.

Hoppenworth, Mr. and Mrs. August
Hoppenworth, Mr. and Mrs. Ewald

Hoppenworth, Mr. Gustav

Hoppenworth, Mr. and Mrs. Harold

Hoppenworth, Darrel

Hoppenworth, Mr. and Mrs. Richard

Hoyt, Mrs. Sherman

Huck, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Huck, Willis

Hughes, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Hullinger, Mr. and Mrs. Theo.
Hullinger, Keith

Hummel, Mr. Leroy

Ide, Ruth

Ide, Esther

Ide, Selma

Ingersoll, Mr. and Mrs. Everett
Ingersoll, Mrs. Fred

Ingersoll, Wilbur

Ingersoll, Mrs. Meta

Ingersoll, John

Ingersoll, Mary Ellen
Isermann, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Isermann, Laverne

Isermann, Robert

Isermann, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Isham, Mr. and Mrs. Richard
Jacobsen, Mr. and Mrs. Maurice
Jacobsen, Joyce

Jensen, Mr. and Mrs. Axel
Jensen, Evelyn

Johannsen, Mr. Hans

Johnson, Rev. and Mrs. Roland
Jones, Mr. and Mrs. Wayne
Judas, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Judas, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Judas, Mr. and Mrs. Erwin
Judisch, Mr. Aug.

Juhl, Mr. and Mrs. Lester
Jungling, Mrs. Henry
Jurgermeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Kahle, Mr. and Mrs. Ewald
Kahle, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Kaiser, Mrs. Conrad

Kaiser, Irene

Kaiser, Mr. and Mrs. George
Kalal, Mr. and Mrs. Ben

Kalal, Delford

Karsten, Rev. and Mrs. A. F.
Karsten, Esther
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Kehe, Mr. and Mrs. L. W.
Kehe, Mrs. Louise

Kehe, Margaret

Keller, Caroline

Kelling, Mr. and Mrs. A. T
Kelling, Mr. and Mrs. Orlin
Kelly, Mr. and Mrs. Boyd
Kettner, Mr, and Mrs. Meinhardt
Kirchdoerfer, Rev. and Mrs. George
Kirchhoff, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Kirchhoff, Helen

Klammer, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. F.
Klaudt, Mrs. G. J.

Klaudt, Gilmore

Klein, Mr. and Mrs. A. D.
Klein, Duane

Kleinschmidt, Mr. and Mrs. Eldon
Kleinschmidt, William
Kleinschmidt, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Kleinschmidt, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Knappe, Mrs. Marie

Knappe, Adelheid

Inief, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Kock, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Kock, Donna

Koch, Mr. and Mrs. F. C.

Koch, Paul

Koehn, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Koepke, Mr. and Mrs. Chas.
Koepke, Mr. and Mrs. Casper
Koelling, Mr. and Mrs. L. C.
Koelling, Geraldine

Koelling, Ruth

Kohagen, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Kohagen, Wayne

Kohagen, Ardath

Kohagen, Paul

Kohagen, Marilyn

Kohagen, I'ranklin

Kohagen, Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd
Kohlmann, Mr. and Mrs. A. C.
Kohlmann, Ardith

Kohlmann, Mr. and Mrs. E. II1.
Kohlmann, Mrs. George
Kollmann, Mr. and Mrs. I'red
Koob, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Koob, Mr. and Mrs. Fred

IZoob, Lloyd

Koopmann, Mr. and Mrs. Ernest
Korth, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Ifraushaar, Mrs. Marie
Kraushaar, Dorothy

Kroger, Mr. and Mrs. J. P.
Kroger, Donald

Kromer, Dr. and Mrs. IE. H.
Kromer, Charles

Kromer, Paul

Krull, Mr. and Mrs. Siebelt
Krumme, Ruth

Krumwiede, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Krumwiede, Elaine

Krumwiede, Dorothy
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Krumwiede, Charles
Krumwiede, Frederick
Kuethe, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Kuethe, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Kuethe, Mr. and Mrs. Edgar
Kuethe, Lucille

LaBahn, Mrs. Rose

LaBahn, Vivian

Lampe, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Lampe, Kenneth

Lampe, Mr. and Mrs. Wendell
Lampe, Mr. and Mrs. Conrad
Lampe, Mr. and Mrs. Ernest
Lampe, Estel

Lampe, Paul

Lampe, Georgia

Lampe, Darlene

Lampe, Mr. and Mrs. Lavern
Lampe, Romaine

Langholz, Mrs. Emma
Langholz, Roland

Lantzky, Mr. and Mrs. Harvey
Lantzky, Mr. and Mrs. August
Lantzky, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Larson, Olive

Latwesen, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Latwesen, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Latwesen, Mr. and Mrs. Erwin
Laube, Mr. Ernest

Laube, Emma

Laube, Mary

Laube, Mr. and Mrs. Gustav H.
Laube, Wallace

Laube, Maxine

Laube, Mr. and Mrs. John G.
Laube, John Jr.

Laube, William

Lauck, Mrs. Sophie

Lavell, Mrs. F. A.

Lehmkuhl, Mr. and Mrs. I&. C.
Leisinger, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Leisinger, Dorothy

Leisinger, Melvin

Leisinger, Delores

Leisinger, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Leisinger, Mr. and Mrs. Herman
Leisinger, Albert

Leisinger, George

Leisinger, Clarence

Leisinger, Wayne

Leisinger. Mr. and Mrs. Custav
Leisinger, Donald

Leisinger, Wilbert

Leisinger, Wilma

Leisinger, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Leisinger, Mrs. Hedwig
Lenius, Mr. and Mrs. Adolph
Lenius, Herman

Lenius, Harold

Lenius, Raymond

Lenius, Mr. and Mrs. Lorenze
Lieubau, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. I,
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Liebau, Mrs. Louise

Liebers, Mrs. Mandon
Liemohn, Dr. and Mrs. Edwin
Liemohn, Muriel

Lindner, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Lindner, Sherwin

Lindner, Edwin Jr.

Lohman, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Lohman, Eleanora

Lohman, Arlene

Lohman, Laverne

Lohn, Mrs. Hannah

Lohn, Perna

Loomis, Betty

Loomis, Mrs. Mary J.

Loomis, Glenna

Lorch, Mrs. Clara

Luhring, Mr. and Mrs. Henry A.
Luhring, William

Luhring, Mr. and Mrs. Henry F.
Luhring, Viola

Luloff, Mrs. Theresa

Luloff, Mr. and Mrs. Luvern
Luloff, Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
Luloff, Mr. and Mrs. Oswald
Lynch, Mr. and Mrs. Lester
Lynch, Richard

Lynch, James

Lynes, Mr. and Mrs. J. Kendall
McClure, Mrs. Muriel

Mack, Rev. Christian

Mack, Mr. and Mrs. Victor
Mack, Milton

Mahnke, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Mahnke, Mrs. John

Maldzahn, Mr. and Mrs. Chas.
Marr, Bertha

Martin, Mr. and Mrs. W. Adrian
Martin, Elizabeth

Matthias, Mr. and Mrs. August

Meyer, Laura

Meyer, Marie

Meyer, Herbert

Meyer, Mr. and Mrs. Harley
Meyer, Mr. and Mrs. John
Meyers, Mrs. Wm. W.

Meyers, Mr. and Mrs. Paul A.
Milius, Mr. and Mrs. John
Milius, Mr. and Mrs. Chris
Milius, Paul

Miller, Mr. and Mrs. Leslie
Miller, Merle

Miller, Shirley

Miller, Mr. and Mrs. Will H.
Miller, Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert
Minnaert, Mrs. Frances
Minnaert, Delores

Moehling, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Moeller, Mr. and Mrs. August
Moeller, Lavern

Moeller, Mrs. Emilie

Moeller, Rev. and Mrs. Paul
Moeller, Joan

Moeller, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst F.
Moeller, Floyd

Moeller, Ruth

Moeller, Mr. and Mrs. Lester
Moeller, Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
Monaghan, Mrs. Viola

Morgan, Mr. and Mrs. Cecil
Morrill, Mr. and Mrs. Robert
Muehling, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Muehling, Leroy

Muehling, Darlene

Muehling, Lois

Mueller, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Mueller, Ewald

Mueller, Dolores

Mueller, James

Matthias, Dale
Matthias, Rev. and Mrs. Aug.
Matthias, Ruth

Matthias, Helene
Matthias, Erna

Matthias, Mr. and Mrs. Wesley
Mensing, Mr. and Mrs. Robert

Mehmen, Mr. and Mrs. George
Mehmen, James
Mensching, Mrs. Herman
Mensching, Lorenz

Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
Meyer,
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Mr. and Mrs.

Mrs. Louise

Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.

Olinda

Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.

Alex

Ed. H.
Fred H.
Alfred
W. G.

Raymond
Henry F.
Kurt

Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Mueller,
Muench,
Muench,
Mulford,

Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.

Elsie

Mr. and Mrs.

Marilyn
Corinne
Shirley

Mr. and Mrs.

Howard

Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.

Mrs. Ewald

Mr. and Mrs.
Mr. and Mrs.

Mrs. Rosa

Adolph
Alfred
Ernst

Ernst L.

John

Harold
Henry

Roland
Carl

Mr. and Mrs. Lyman
Mummelthei, Mrs. Frieda

Mummelthei, Mr. and Mrs. Lorenz
Mummelthei, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Mummelthei, Nicholas
Mummelthei, Robert
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Mundt, Mr. and Mrs. Rudolph
Mundt, Melvin

Napiecek, Mr. and Mrs. Leonard
Neubauer, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Neumann, Dr. and Mrs. G. J.
Neumann, Edwin

Niedorf, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Niemann, Mr. and Mrs. F. W.
Niemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Niemeyer, Lyle

Niemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Gustav
Niemeyer, Renetta

Niewohner, Mr. and Mrs. August
Niewohner, Frederick
Niewohner, Ellen

Niewohner, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Niewohner, Herbert

Nissen, Mr. Frank

Nissen, Mr. and Mrs. John
Nissen, Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
Norman, Mr. and Mrs. Sam
Nolting. Herbert

Nuss, Mr. and Mrs. I'red W.
Nuss, Norman

Nuss, Erwin

Nuss, Evelyn

Oberheu, Mr. and Mrs. Arnold
Oberheu, Norma,

Oberheu, Robert

Oberheu, Vernon

Oberheu, Ernest

Oberheu, Mrs. Karl

Oberheu, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Oberheu, Mr. and Mrs. Wilbert
Oberheu, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Odegard, Mr. and Mrs. Edfield
Oetting, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Oetting, Doris

Oetting, Melvin

Ohlendorf, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Ohlendorf, Henry

Ohlendorf, Lawrence
Ohlendorf, Helen

Ohlendorf, Grace

Olson, Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence
Oltrogge, Emma

Oltrogge, Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth
Oltrogge, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Orth, Mr. and Mrs. Leo

Orth, Emma

Orth, Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert
Orth, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. V.
Ottersberg, Rev. and Mrs. Alke
Ottersberg, Emma

Ottersberg, Frieda

Ottersberg, Helen

Ottersberg, Prof. and Mrs. G.
Ottersberg, Ruth

Pagel, Marie

Pape, Mr. and Mrs. Henry K.
Pape, Mr. and Mrs. Milton
Pape, Roger
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Parrot, Mr. and Mrs. Harrison
Pauley, Mrs. Margaret
Perkins, Mr. and Mrs. Wendell
Peters, Mr. and Mrs. Erwald
Peterson, Mr. and Mrs. James
Peterson, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Phelps, Mr. and Mrs. Raymond
Pichelmeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Chas.
Pichelmeyer, Elaine
Pichelmeyer, Charles Jr.
Piegors, Henry

Pipho, Mrs. Sophie

Pipho, Mrs. Bertha

Pipho, LaVern

Platte, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Platte, Waldo

Platte, Ruth

Platte, Vernon

Polenz, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Polenz, Donald

Polenz, Lester

Polenz, Daryl

Poppe, Mr. and Mrs. Hermann
Pothast, Mr. and Mrs. A. M.
Pothast, Ethel

Pothast, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Pothast, Ardith

Pothast, Henry

Pothast, Merlin

Pothast, Donald

Pothast, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Pothast, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Pothast, Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd
Pries, John C.

Propp, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Propp, Mrs. John

Prottengeier, Mr. and Mrs. August

Prottengeier, Vernita
Prottengeier, Adeline
Prottengeier, Dorothy
Prottengeier, George
Protttengeier, Elsie

Rabbe, Mrs. Adline

Rabbe, Carol Ann

Racker, Mrs. Eleanor
Rathe, William H.

Rausch, Mrs. Anna

Ray, Mrs. Oakley

Rediske, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Rediske, JoAnn

Rediske, Eldon

Reith Jacob

Reith, Helene

Reith, Irene

Reith, Marie

Remmers, Mr. and Mrs. Ewald
Remmers, Helen

Renner, Mr. and Mrs. Ben
Ressler, Mr. and Mrs. Verne
Ressler, Jeanette
Richmann, Herbert
Richmann, Margaret




Prof. E. G. Heist Mr. Robert Mensing

Organist Head Usher
Mr. Wm. H. Muehling Prof. A. W. Swenson
Custodian Sunday School Superintendent
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Ritter, Mrs. Tom

Rodemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Alfred
Rodemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst
Rodemeyer, Ruth

Rodemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Rodemeyer, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Roever, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Roever, Velda

Roever, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. Jr.
Roever, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Roever, Shirley

Roever, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Roloff, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Roloff, Harlan

Roloff, Geraldine

Roloff, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Roloff, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst
Rose, Carl

Rosenau, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Rosenau, Erwin

Rosenau, John

Roselius, Mrs. Wm. H.
Roselius, Roland

Roselius, Ronald

Rowray, Mr. and Mrs. David
Rowray, Lavonne

Rowray, Richard

Rubenow, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Rubenow, Robert

Russell, Mrs. Genevieve
Saathoff, Mr. and Mrs. Carl
Sack, Mrs. Ernst

Sanders, Mr. and Mrs. Wilbur
Salge, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Sauerbrei, Mr. and Mrs. Forrest
Sauerbry, Alvera

Sauerbry, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Sauerbry, Laverne

Sauerbrei, Mrs. Martha
Sauerbrei, Carrol
Schalkhauser, Rev. Carl
Scharnhorst, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Scharnhorst, Shirley
Scharnhorst, Mr. and Mrs. Lavern
Scharnhorst, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Scharnhorst, Mr. and Mrs. Will
Scharnhorst, Wilbert

Scharp, Mr. and Mrs. Herman
Scharp, Marlyn

Scharp, Marlys

Schauer, Mr. and Mrs. George
Schauer, Dorothy

Schauer, Mrs. John C.
Schellhorn, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst
Schellhorn, Verona

Schiller, Mr. and Mrs. Ben
Schiller, Harvey

Schiller, Melvin

Schiller, Doris

Schiller, LaVern

Schilling, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
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Schilling, Wilbert

Schilling, Mr. and Mrs. Harlan
Schlutsmeyer, Mrs. Arthur
Schmidt, John

Schmidt, Ruth Marie

Schmidt, Gladys

Schmidt, Dorothy

Schmidt, Roberta

Schneider, Mr. and Mrs. Jacob
Schoenbeck, Mr. and Mrs. Paul
Schoonover, Mrs. Melba
Schrader, Mr. and Mrs. George
Schrage, Bernard
Schroedermeier, Dorothy
Schroedermeier, Ray

Schulz, Mrs. Ella

Schaefer, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Schaefer, Margaret

Schaefer, Ruth

Schoof, Mrs. Fred

Schoof, Mrs. Caroline

Schoof, Mr. and Mrs. Herman
Schoof, Donald

Schoof, Verla

Schoof, Merwin

Schoof, Marjorie

Schoof, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Schoof, Carol

Schroeder, Mrs. Sophie
Schroeder, Mr. and Mrs. Arlen
Schuldt, Mr. and Mrs. Minor
Schulze, Mrs. Anna
Schumacher, John
Schumacher, Annetta

Schwab, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Schwake, John

Schwake, Irma

Schwerin, Mr. and Mrs. Herbert
Schwerin, Mr. and Mrs. Lorenz
Schwerin, Martha

Seegers, Harvey

Sell, Mrs. Catherine

Seekatz, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Seekatz, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Seamon, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Seamon, Darlys

Seegebarth, Mr. and Mrs. John
Serfoss, Orvel

Shipman, Mr. and Mrs. Gordon
Shipp, Mrs. Adeline

Sickles, Mr. and Mrs. Milton
Sickles, Dwight

Sickert, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Sickert, Darlene

Siefkes, Mrs. Wm.

Siefkes, Katherine

Sivesind, Mr. and Mrs. Casper
Sinkey, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Sinkey, Alberta

Sohle, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Sohle, Bonnie




Sohle, Mr. and Mrs. Ed. C.
Sohle, Mrs. Anna '

Sohle, Mr. and Mrs. Harold
Soldwisch, Mr. and Mrs. Ed.
Soldwisch, Mr. and Mrs. Ewald
Soldwisch, Darlene

Soldwisch, Margaret

Sommers, Mr. and Mrs. Leighton
Spier, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Spier, Lloyd

Spier, Arnold

Spurbeck, Mrs. Walter
Spurbeck, Maurine

Spurbeck, Walter Jr.
Spurbeck, Herschel

Stacy, Mr. and Mrs. Raymond
Steege, Mrs. Herman

Steffen, Mr. and Mrs. Elmore
Steffen, Elmore Jr.

Steffen, Eleanor

Stehn, J. Christ

Stehn, Bertha

Steinberg, Mr. and Mrs. Richard
Stephenson, Mr. and Mrs. George
Stephenson, Richard
Stephenson, Thomas

Stieger, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Stoffregen, Orville

Stoffregen, Ramona
Strottmann, Mrs. Ed.
Strottmann, Robert
Strottmann, Mrs. John
Strottmann, Mrs. Wm.
Strotman, Mr. and Mrs. Leslie
Strotman, Stanley

Strotman, Romaine

Strotman, Dale

Strotman, Betty

Strotman, Beverly

Strotman, Bruce

Strotman, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Strotman, Mr. and Mrs. Ralph
Struck, Gottfried

Studier, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Studier, Barbara

Stuffiebeam, Mrs. Eldora
Stufflebeam, Mrs. Ivan
Stuffiebeam, Mrs. Emma
Stuffiebeam, Mr. and Mrs. Lenos
Stumme, Mr. and Mrs. Herman
Stumme, Robert

Stumme, Richard

Stumme, Frederick

Stumme, Florence

Stumpf, Mr. and Mrs. Marvin
Stunkel, Clara

Swenson, Mr. and Mrs. Alf. W.
Swenson, Robert

Swenson, Richard

Taylor, Irene

Taylor, Phyllis

Tegtmeier, Aaron

Tegtmeier, Robert

Teigler, Fred

Testorf, Mrs. Wm.

Thieking, Mr. and Mrs. Wayne
Thoms, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Thoms, Mr. and Mrs. Ernst H.
Thoms, Mr. and Mrs. Harry
Thoms, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Thoren, Raymond

Thoren, Rosella

Thoren, Dennis

Thoren, Norman

Tillmanns, Rev. and Mrs. W.
Tofte, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.

Tonne, Mr. and Mrs. Louis
Trusty, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Voecks, Mr. and Mrs. W. G.
Voelker, Mr. and Mrs. August
Volker, Mr. and Mrs. Joseph
Vogt, Mrs. Louise

Volk, George

Waggett, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.
Waltemate, Mr. and Mrs. Ernest
Walter, Mrs. Florence
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Margaret
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Walther, Mr. and Mrs.
Weber, Fred

Weber, Ida

Weber, Irene
Wedeking, Mr. and Mrs. Ernest
Wedeking, Mr. and Mrs. Lauren
Wedemeier, Mr. and Mrs. Clarence
Wedemeier, Mr. and Mrs. Otto
Wedemeier, Mr. and Mrs. Otto Jr.
Wedemeier, Mr. and Mrs. Ray
Wedemeier, Mrs. Sarah

Otto

Herbert
Kenneth
Robert
Russel
Rudolph
Harold

Wehrmacher, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.

Weiditschka, Mrs. Wm.
Weisbrodt, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Weisbrodt, Ellen

Weisbrodt, William

Weltner, Mr. and Mrs. Kurt
Weltner, Robert

Weltner, Lillian

Wendt, Mr. and Mrs. Albert
Wendt, Mrs. Henry

Wendt, Lena

Wendt, Mrs. William

Wente, Mr. and Mrs. Elmer
Wente, Doyle

Wente, Mr. and Mrs. E. J.
Wente, Mr. and Mrs. Wm. H.
Wente, Mr. and Mrs. Lorenz
Wessel, Mrs. Edna
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Westendorf, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Westendorf, Donald

Westendorf, Robert

Westendorf, Stanley
Westendorf, Milton

Westendorf, Mr. and Mrs. Leo
Westendorf, Margaret
Westervelt, Mr. and Mrs. Willis
Wiederaenders, Dr. and Mrs. M.
Wiederaenders, Robert
Wiederaenders, Richard
Wiederaenders, Donald
Wiegman, Mr. and Mrs. John
Wilharm, Mr. and Mrs. Emil
Wilharm, Wendell

Wilharm, Lyle

Wilharm, Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Wilharm, Wanda

Wilharm, Mrs. Sophie
Wilkening, Fred

Wilkens, Anne

Will) Mr. and Mrs. Max

Willey, Mrs. Morgan

Willis, Irene

Winkelmann, Mr. and Mrs. Will
Winkelmann, Mr. and Mrs. Erwin
Winkelmann, Mrs. Fred
Winzenburg, Mr. and Mrs. Ceorge

Winzenburg, Walter
Winzenburg, Mr. and Mrs. Wm.,
Wittenburg, Mr. and Mrs. Oswald

“Wolf, Margaret

Wolf, Mr. and Mrs. Fred
Wolf, Margaret Ann
Wuest, Mr. and Mrs. Leo
Wurdinger, Peter

Zahn, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Zahn, Richard

Zahn, Arthur Jr.

Zahn, Gertrude

Zahn, Mr. and Mrs. Walter
Zelle, Mr. and Mrs. Arthur
Zelle, Lester

Zelle, Edgar

Zelle, Marvin

Zelle, Mr. and Mrs. Edwin
Zelle, Herbert

Zelle, Harold

Zelle, Donald

Zelle, Mary Ann
Zimmermann, Mr. and Mrs. Rudolph
Zink, Rev. George

Zink, Henrietta

Zink, Marie

Zoller, Mrs. Dell
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